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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE Dk §

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2023 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 196.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Karen CHAN Ka-yin (Ffi% %)

Christopher CHAO Yu-hang (7 i 1)

Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han (3K 5ifif)

LAU Kwok-fan (Il E fih)

Michael LEUNG Kin-man (2 30)

Victor NG Chi-keung ({5 #8)

Hendrick SIN (% 3 &)

Charleston SIN Chiu-shun (¥t #%F)

YEUNG Chuen-sing (14 5%)

Simon CHAN Sai-ming (F:4H#) (Chairman appointed on 1 April 2022)
Erica MA Yun (5 5%) (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan (Z$1EHt) (appointed on 1 April 2022)
MAK Tak-wai (Z£7%{%) (appointed on 20 July 2022)

Derrick PANG Yat-bond (8 —3) (appointed on 1 April 2023)
KONG Jianping (L&) (appointed on 1 April 2023)

Cheryl CHOW Ho-kiu (J& ] 7F)
(alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai, appointed on 15 May 2023)

Annie CHOI Suk-han (45#UiH) (resigned on 20 July 2022)
LING Kar-kan (&% %) (resigned on 31 March 2023)
Rosana WONG Wai-man (3 2 #{) (resigned on 31 March 2023)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (¥t #)) (alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai,
appointed on 20 July 2022 and resigned on 15 May 2023;
alternate Director to Annie CHOI Suk-Han, resigned on 20 July 2022)
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Directors (continued)

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of Association in connection
with the retirement of Directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in
office for the following year.

The persons who were Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

YAN King-shun ({E51%)
LAU Yip-man (X E) (appointed on 10 October 2023)
LEE Kok-ming (Z=[E 44) (resigned on 23 July 2023)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE Dk §

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company was in force. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the Directors' liabilities in respect
of any legal actions against its Directors arising out of corporate activities.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Simon CHAN Sai-ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
12 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EEBBAEEFRAA

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 120 to 196, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Joh ST A O

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
12 December 2023
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AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LWL E M SRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Lia iR
Year ended 31 March 2023 # % 202343 431 H 1L4FJE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LEA AN 4 3R
Year ended 31 March 2023 # £ 202343 H 31 H IF 4

2023 2023
HKD HKD
BT BT
REVENUE LN 4 412,042,881 416,817,592 LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRTH (246,552,505) (219,273,108)
Other net income RPN 4 78,479,710 6,366,632
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME HibemE (TiR), W
490,522,591 423,184,224
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be TR G IR £ E R 28 B AR 2 oA
eclassified to fit or loss in subsequent iods: S =) fi
EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES RitAAES®EHIZIHR i s profitor foss 1 subsequent pert H (S8, b
EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION WA XH - Changes in fair value of equity investments - TR A AR E TN A A T i R 2
desi ted at fai lue th h oth A PN A
Building management expenses AL (183,727,919)  (175,145,689) eelgnatec at fair verue Mrotgn other R 2 B
comprehensive income (139,838,708) 99,193,026
Staff costs BT A 5 (101,608,732) (71,777,349)
Government rent and rates Hb AR S 2511 9 (15,204,906) (15,692,883)
Other operating expenses — T, (44,049,095 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FREMSE (S1R), /K BRBIM)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (139,838,708) 99,193,026
Finance costs 55 %% 6 (47,963) (84,848)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRNL2ESHREM (386,391,213) (120,080,082)
(387,880,695) (306,749,864)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION Rt ARERFDZHRFIA
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION ZAEEF 102,641,896 116,434,360
Public mission activities expenses, net N AR A IS B ST 10 (186,655,669) (180,621,855)
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION RITTHHEESH (84,013,773) (64,187,495)
Depreciation riH (162,538,732) (155,085,613)
LOSS BEFORE TAX ERBL AT S K 6 (246,552,505)  (219,273,108)
Income tax EIEEE 11 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRNTH (246,552,505) (219,273,108)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ZEA M SRR
As at 31 March 2023 F 202343 A31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Prepayments and deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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13
14(a)

15
18

17
18
27(b)
16
19

20
21
27(b)
14(b)

2023
HKD

3,225,323,252
1,190,514
6,525,764
125,852,290
2,432,671

2,942,946,396
3,358,084
10,453,908
273,269,615
5,163,496

3,361,324,491

3,235,191,499

376,004
27,999,345
31,192,691

201,442

653,239,404
326,394,805

171,488
18,743,644
47,115,314

1,938,909
692,395,437
294,335,411

1,039,403,691

1,054,700,203

72,459,276 45,531,974
252,792,148 235,923,137
103,973,471 94,287,294
254,303,568 254,303,568

1,279,666 2,254,797
684,808,129 632,300,770
354,595,562 422,399,433

3,715,920,053 3,6567,590,932

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Development maintenance fund

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Simon CHAN Sai-ming
IV 200 7
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LEA WS IR L3R
As at 31 March 2023 F202343 31 H
2023
HKD
BT

22 371,802,919 379,206,407
14(b) = 1,279,666

371,802,919 380,486,073

3,344,117,134 3,277,104,859

23 984,000,002 538,000,002
2,360,117,132 2,739,104,857

3,344,117,134 3,277,104,859

Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han
KR
Director

i

Hng s 2022/23 4R 123



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

LEE N s A Bh 3R
Year ended 31 March 2023 # % 202343 431 H 1L4FJE

At 1 April 2021 F2021F4A1R 300,000,002 5377,494,224 33,124,474 (2559,979,539)  3,150,639,161
Loss for the year ERTH - - - (219.273,108)  (219,273,108)
Other comprehensive income AF Py Hoflh 42 TS
for the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - WERARMETA
investments designated JAb A TR 2 IRk
at fair value through other BEZARMEL
comprehensive income, net of tax (fnBRBLST) - - 99,193,026 - 99,193,026
Total comprehensive loss for the year — 4F- 4 i = 5 K4 - - 99193026 (219.273,108)  (120,080,082)
Subtotal /N 300,000,002 5377,494,224 132,317500  (2,779,252,647)  3,030,559,079
Issue of shares RATI 23 238,000,000 - - - 238,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon s (b A R A
the deregistration of an equity ELEPaiti] T
investment at fair value through B2 A RMEE L
other comprehensive income - - (4,327,093) 4,327,093 -
Transfer from development R R BEEHRE
maintenance fund to capital reserve VN 22 - 8,545,780 - - 8,545,780
At 31 March 2022 and F2022%3A310 K
at 1 April 2022 F20225481R 538,000,002  5,386,040,004* 127,990,407 (2,774,925,554)*  3,277,104,859
Loss for the year FERTH - - - (246,552,505)  (246,552,505)
Other comprehensive loss for A A A T
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - FEE A METEA
investments designated HAb A s 2 e A
at fair value through other Bz A AMER D)
comprehensive income, net of tax (BB - - (139,838,708) - (139,838,708)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 4R 2T 5 HE# - - (139,838,708)  (246,552,505)  (386,391,213)
Subtotal N 538,000,002  5,386,040,004 (11,848,301)  (3,021,478,059)  2,890,713,646

124 Cyberport 2022/23 Annual Report

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
LEE B A sh 3R
Year ended 31 March 2023 # £ 202343 H 31 H IF 4

Issue of shares KAT R 23 446,000,000 - - - 446,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon N S E A AR E A

the deregistration of an equity AT R 2 TR A

investment at fair value through B2 N AMEED)

other comprehensive income - - 9,053,449 (9,053,449) -
Transfer from development Rk REBEEREE

maintenance fund to capital reserve FAl 22 - 7,403,488 - - 7,403,488
At 31 March 2023 F2023F3831A 984,000,002  5,393,443,492* (2,794,852)* (3,030,531,508)*  3,344,117,134

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HKD2,360,117,132 (2022: HKD2,739,104,857) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

* LA K B AR A M S IR DR 2 45 A 1 #2,360,117,1324 7T (20224F © 2,739,104,857#7C) .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEMERER
Year ended 31 March 2023 # % 202343 431 H 1L4FJE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Realisation of government grants

Interest income from financial assets at
amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium

Interest income from investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest income from investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Fair value losses on debt investments at
fair value through profit or loss, net

Net realised/unrealised losses on investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income on bank deposits
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net

Finance costs

Revaluation gains on investments

Decrease in deferred rental receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase/(decrease) in rental and other deposits

Cash used in operations

Interest on lease liabilities

Net cash flows used in operating activities
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2023
HKD

(246,552,505)

160,371,162
2,167,570
(83,160,826)

(316,887)

(15,680,489)

3,589,500

8,041,445
(6,930,337)
2,000,117

27,037
47,963
(844,686)

(219,273,108)

152,612,032
2,473,581
(87,913,826)

(2,603,975)

(15,049,857)

(2,334,269)

138,781

28,552,189
(1,638,215)
29,625
8,497,518

84,848
(408,687)

(177,240,936)
3,928,144
(204,516)
(11,255,818)

21,935,167
1,737,467
26,927,302
28,528,527
9,686,177

(136,833,363)
2,841,440
40,712
1,629,915

14,458,969

103,083
(4,708,183)
12,740,546
(1,143,189)

(95,958,486)
(47,963)

(110,870,070)
(84,848)

(96,006,449)

(110,954,918)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Purchase of investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of held for
maturity investments

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss
- Bank deposits

(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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2023
HKD
AT

(442,775,055)
(12,227,990)

(252,247,504)

49,384,925

234,507,136

14,531,824

316,887
15,273,105
6,056,002

(43,346,604)

(311,645,142)
(42,146,518)

(344,756,154)

34,981,200

396,590,932

2,908,304
16,017,365
1,646,494

326,331

(430,527,274)

(246,077,188)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ZEN SR ER

Year ended 31 March 2023 # % 202343 431 H 1L4FJE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government grants received

Principal portion of lease payments
Proceeds from issue of shares

Increase in amount due from immediate
holding company

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
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Notes

25(a)
25(a)

2023 2022

HKD HKD

BT #IT
71,501,310 32,237,246
(2,254,797) (2,533,072)
446,000,000 238,000,000
- 9,990
515,246,513 267,714,164

(11,287,210)

(89,317,942)

269,402,547 358,720,489
258,115,337 269,402,547
326,394,805 294,335,411

(68,279,468)

(24,932,864)

258,115,337

269,402,547

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote the
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation
of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company is anchored in three strategic
directions:

- Talent Cultivation and Development;

Industry Development; and
- Integration of New and Traditional economies.

In the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure
the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of
budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry
talent, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders from
technology industry, academia, research institutes and professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (the “CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of
HKD200 million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early
financing and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in
Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport had committed to inject an additional
amount of HKD200 million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover
Series B and later-stage investments. Further details of the investments
made up to the end of the reporting period are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established various teams (“Public Mission Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Public Mission
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR W55 R B
31 March 2023 202343 H31H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. NRER(£)

Information about subsidiaries A b I A w] i Rt
AN Z KR ARERB T -

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HKD1 100 - Investment holding
ik 1T PV IR

CMF One Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
il 1T PRI

CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
T 1T PRIk

CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
il R PR

CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
i 1¥570 B

CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
i R PR

CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
i 1T PRk

CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
itk 1T BB

CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding
i 1T PRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, debt investments
at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been measured at fair
value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2023 202343 H31H
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets

(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying

amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation

differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the

consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and

(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share

of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the

same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for

132

the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity
to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer
to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no contingent
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of the
amendments arising in the business combination that occurred during
the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant
and equipment being available for use, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of
the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment prospectively from
1 April 2022. As there was no modification or exchange of the
Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEA W 55 i R B

31 March 2023 20234E3H31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'®

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and

HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)2 4

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020 Amendments

was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather

than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

© An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification overlay set

out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments
to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current or non-
current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies
the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit
is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’'s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

//J\ [=] mﬁkﬂiﬁ[gﬁ‘(f

31 March 2023 202343 A 31

2.4 FTESITTHERBE

2 E R

AL PR T A IR R 8 SU (B i H AR A
EIFAB SR 2 B AT, %A M T A 2
f5t 55 B B i 4 S B T AN HAR A T i AR 2 AR
¥, AnMEATHERINETYZE5E2H
T 58 b o AL b B 7 T A sl R L B A5 T S A
A oy SR B S IR T (B B T
B2 L5 TR Bt TR AL, W
Wt =M, W57 st A MW
KA, EEB A M TS ARE R WA 2T
Yi. WrBnste s nManERmassE T
ot B 7 B FAEHEAT A M I TR 2 AR BT DA
(RE 25 F R LA T3 .

A 4 PR SR 3 1T A ] 1 0 5L B4 700 Bdis BAIE
RAARMEZ G ERA, Pl BRI AR
LU A N B R R D 8 RS L N B
1z,

N FSUAAE T 45 I S5 R U B R 2 AT e
Je S fst, o ARAE X B AR SR E T T S R
ZHRARE FAMANE T A RMES 2, W
T

B - BT IR BT SR BT KT 2 4R
M (RETTEE)

B - ETXNASME RS EER 2 R
IR G A AT %S (AN 38 T 452 1]
) Z AR

B - ETHARMMETENSEER L&
)2 G A (B A AT 2 A (B AR

AR 28 VR ME T 28 5 W 95 R I N 2 B> A
B E, AL E N T A4 AR TG 5 2
(TR HEAR LY SRR (BT 1T 5 )8 K 2 B A=
AME) BUEE AR G2 R R AEFER,

Ik 4 il 9 7 Z W E
il — T = (FE 0. 4 Rl W 7 R 3 4 B B0 8 7= ok
AN AFAE SR TR B, SR B AT AR B A Wt
D)2 A T 7 2 R IR B, B AT A e <
&ﬁ#ﬁﬂ%ﬁi$Wzﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁ
B AR W 2 B L, IR A
JEE, BRAEZ 5 A 2 A N AR AN BE
SEF A G ECR > T A 2 BN, A
G BT, T i 4 AR 1% Y T B 4 e R
(7 B AE

Bk 2022/23 4R 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEA W 55 i R B

31 March 2023 20234E3H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T E2HHEME (&)

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.

RELDT (8%)
B4

(b)  FEANLARFE TIMEAT A2 Sk

o

() %Sk 5 A 4 R Al — SR 1A 2 BB A
Cile

el

(i) SR A S — Sk (808 — Sk 2 B
Al B R 2 ) B AR B A ] 2 BE
NAEIEAE A

(i) ZMRGARER A —E =h 2 &
A s

(iv) Sk A% =05 Stk 2 &l s —
SRR G =TT I 2B N R

(V) IZSEAR A AR SR T T AR A OGO 2 Ak
LR DURE AR 7 2 B RS AR

(Vi) Z AR (@) BT A1 N 42 ) s 3k ] 4
il

(vii) (@) ()50 81 At 3% S0k AL A 3R 3 i
T BRI (S Z SR Z BT 2
FEEMR D &

(viii) 1% S slCHE T J 4 P 2 AR A B S A )

] AL A B A SR ] 2 B 4y w4 A 3 A
R MR 55

Bk 2022/23 4R 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEA W 55 i R B

31 March 2023 20234E3H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

140

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease

Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/.%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
"Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (“0OCI"), it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subseguent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Cyberport 2022/23 Annual Report

2.4 TESITTHEREME (£)

BV B I AR T (8%)

Hait& (4)

LT A A i & 2

BN S E T A B i 2 BT 1R A A E T I
SR ARDLRAM, 1M 2> Fo A 72 2 ¥ i T 460 4 & g
o

BE IR AT A T BB A BEWE, A S HIF T
I AT 32 5 4 O SR A (B T N Al 2 T R 6
1002, NN M E T AR 25 2 2l 9>
ARG S AN T 3 S, R AR R4
FEAR P REVL ) AR, HLIR S @E v il 2
I, FEB R0 IA AN

ATREG G (BEERA” E64) kL
HIFJR A, S RlBE ™ T 2E R A URT
A T HAREER oy 2 A 1 8 SU N (B A B4R 2 Sl
2N

2k N B B

SRV (S (& ) — T Al = 2 — B4
LR R B 2 ) AR AU
Z R TIN (BP AT 2 2545 W 55 IR DL B )

FAZIT9 ™ WO 4 8 2 ORI 2 il 5 B

AL C AR B A2 008 OB & i 2
BUA, s R AT B HE BT B R 5 =
D5 S BT 4 i i 2 SATE, HOFTC L
HRIED 5 K (a) A S B iz 59" < 4
Ry ARG B Il 4, 3 (b) A 4 M 3 TC ik 51
PREFAZ I 2 SR AR o KRG B ol 4, M
Al iz 5t~ Z Rl AL

il A< 4 P L e Lk EL B 2 098 7 OB 4 O 2
I CAT S AT e, R ML H O R E %
TG 7 i A7 AL 70 2 XK % (o] i LA K2 R B A
JE o A TT R LR R B A% 0T ™ 2 48 TR KUK
Fo ol 0 s e AR A7 IR B 2 FEIAL, AR K T
Free 2 5 AR SEIR N C R =, 7R LS DL
N, ARLEPINHIMVH R T, O R B O R
B Aot 4% ] S AR 42 T BT R B BOR B S AT 2 HE TR

=)

=0

LS BT % ik B = AR E AR 2 U AT 2 F s 2
5, HeG UG 2 IO T B R AR 48 P s i
Rt e E R (DU i) 14,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL). The Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.
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(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Revenue from food and beverages

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in
time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally
upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenant
bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when
the customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the car park fee is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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(continued)

Foreign currency transactions (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs reviews for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers "“Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and "Building services and support facilities” as
a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which the
portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices
and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, provision for impairment loss on the
non-financial assets is not necessary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value
through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund
managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the investments is provided internally on that basis to
the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
keep these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances
for example, selling financial assets with an insignificant amount close
to maturity, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at amortised
cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer'’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have
been valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-
based valuation techniques and expected cash flows discounted at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The
valuations require the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple or
enterprise value multiple. Hence, they are subject to uncertainty. The fair
values of the unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments
at 31 March 2023 were HKD119,976,069 and HKD5,876,221, respectively.
Further details are included in notes 15 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change or
improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in the market
demand for the service output of the asset, the expected usage of the
asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group's
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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S MR RLGE 2 A% BB A P I (4040 22 716 9 4R DA
LR TIRE ST SL M) . 2R RSl i, 2
O R K N K T I, AR S Al W AR A
Al (G R AR AR F I i SRR, FRAUE
W TR Al (A AR 2w A 3 S B
).

5 S0 B

2 JE BTG 7 T AT A A R URBE R R T TR T
B2 OUT IR B BT T AR A
J ZBURR 8 oA ok S W BE i R T RE I 2 I i) B KT
T [ A AR 5 0 R S A o SRR, DA AT
TN Z B B T B
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LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 H31H

REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Income from hotel operation

Building management income

- Management fee income

- Other facilities income

Revenue from other sources

Rental income

Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate

Other lease payments, including fixed payments

Car park fee income

Other incidental income

Type of services
Income from hotel operation
- Room income
- Food and beverage income
Building management income
- Management fee income

- Other facilities income

Total revenue from contracts with customers

4, WANSHAMBN EE
WA Z AT
2023
HKD
BT
FFE LA
W5 s 42,538,055 1,536,481
Wl B N
— BRI 93,953,219 92,394,809
— HoAth % e A 33,707,828 30,835,496
170,199,102 124,766,786
JCMARIEZ A
LR LN
IFAR B T8 Bk B R
Z A ARG A 3K 3,286,963 9,014,218
HABFAGE ALK, 4G A K 225,120,185 265,886,165
228,407,148 274,900,383
HEEE/ TN 13,436,631 13,301,802
FoAth 43 A - 3,848,621
241,843,779 292,050,806
412,042,881 416,817,592

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers

PR FE
R E B YA

— HRHEWA

— B SRR
Pall A BN

— EHERICA

— HAt BB A

F R AN B

(@) FFEHBRANZ RKBRNTR

2023

HKD

BT
11,360,098 1,097,882
31,177,957 438,599
93,953,219 92,394,809
33,707,828 30,835,496
170,199,102 124,766,786
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers (continued)

156

Geographical markets EH

Hong Kong ik

Timing of revenue recognition [ ON: IN: ]

Services transferred at a point in time TR — AW 2 RSy
Services transferred over time i 1 ] 2 B 2 IR 55

Total revenue from contracts with customers P A IO BT

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities

at the beginning of the reporting period:

LONSE-C L ONEL TP
(@) HFHEHBANZSRBNTOR (58)

2023
HKD

170,199,102 124,766,786

53,905,268 19,126,223
116,293,834 105,640,563

170,199,102 124,766,786

RSN T A B AT AR S 2

ot ep 2 N B

2023
HKD

Revenue recognised that was included in contract A A RS Y & 47 2

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: A :

Income from hotel operation SN

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

Income from hotel operation
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services are
rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages
The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains
control of the promised goods, being at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages at the restaurants. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages.

Management fee income
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in
time as services are rendered.

Cyberport 2022/23 Annual Report

1,106,162 1,460,345

(b) JELITHE
B RASE LA THUE 2 FORBER I

I E B
JB 24 DA T4 IR 55 I B I i) 4 R TR
7.

il B CRHI
JB L) TR T % 7 WU R B 24 LI
(B2 P AR A2 0 T B B SO ORHI ) JBAT . %
I BB i BRI S R S A2 5

i {ON
JB 24 DA T4 IR 55 I B I i) 4 R TR
7.

FAb BN
JB 24 TTAT B I e RS T B A AR 55 i R
7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which
amounted to HKD2,040,980 as at 31 March 2023 (2022: HKD1,106,162)
are expected to be recognised within one year.

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

4, WANSHMBXN S (%)

(b) WBATHE (&%)
T 202343 H31H, 4% F 48 L 5T
(KR IRBATEHS 7 KRR BAT) Z &G i
2,040,980%5 7T (20224F = 1,106,162¥7C), T
WK T —HE RN,

2023
HKD
BT
Other net income HAW N #80
Interest income from financial assets at amortised %4 BLAS 51 ik 2 42 il ¥ 7= 2 1),
cost, net of amortisation of premium of WA, BRI AN 91,9520 0
HKD91,952 (2022: HKD137,588) (20224 : 137,588 ) 316,887 2,603,975
Interest income from investments at fair value F2 08 SUME T A i 2 4 2 R
through profit or loss [N 15,680,489 15,049,857
Interest income on bank deposits RATAF R Z FLBIR A 6,930,337 1,638,215
Services income from fellow subsidiaries (Note) [a] Z2 Bff e 2 7] 2 AR S5 e N (i) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised losses on N RMET AR R 2 B2
investments at fair value through profit or loss EASIL AT L (8,041,445) (28,552,189)
Foreign exchange differences, net INE 855 (3,680,335) 2,784,780
Government grants B A - 2,684,200
Government subsidies on rental waiver AR A 2 BUM VR B 61,713,927 -
Others HAth 1,358,196 5,956,140
78,479,710 6,366,632

Note:

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the
“Residential Portion”) was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited
("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited
(the “immediate holding company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October
2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of
HKD125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November 2003 for the provision
of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was
revised to HKD200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HKD261,000 commencing from
May 2008. The total amount received during the year was HKD3,132,000 (2022: HKD3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion. The total amount received during the year was HKD1,069,654 (2022: HKD1,069,654).

BiHIE «

F20004E5 A 24 H, Fuls B R RIS A7 ("EEERA R
i [ 2 AR 22 7 8 VS KR 5 (BRI R ) AT BRZS 7] ("HKCADL") HE ih
R AR 2 PO B 8969 5 H o — 4y bt (fE I . ARIEA
AR 5 HKCADLTAT 2 A 11420034510 A 25 B Z IR X, AAH
AT Z HER MR S5, B 20034E 11 1 JF 45 1 1 HKCADL I
B125,600% 0 Z [ MR 45N, H 200644 1 % 20084F5 2, it
SN 53 45 1T 4 45 200,000 7T 52 261,000 76, A4 2l 8
i 413,132,0004 7C (20224F : 3,132,000%75)

HRAE A 28 7] 55 ) 7 B IR 28 7 Skillful Limited BFiT 7 H 84 20054F-3
F12H Z Mg ik, A )k A A 42 4 Ve R R 4 2l iR 5
T A5 ORI S5 N o A 4 BE E R A4 1,069,654 7T (20224F
1,069,654 7C) o
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5.

6.

158

STAFF COSTS

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Staff benefits and other staff costs

Analysed into:
Hotel

Corporate office

Public Mission Teams (note 10)

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Rental income less outgoings of
HKD14,460,506 (2022: HKD14,986,883)

Cost of inventories

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Fair value losses on debt investments
at fair value through profit or loss, net

Auditor’s remuneration
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net

Finance costs:

Interest on lease liabilities

Cyberport 2022/23 Annual Report

5. RIA
UL Z At

2023

HKD

BT
A S HE 144,199,228 106,622,749
B pRE AL R 3t 5,902,130 4,854,533
B AR R A A by AR 470,040 846,120
150,571,398 112,323,402

I

MLl 50,774,781 19,552,360
VNEIPIS=2' 50,833,951 52,224,989
101,608,732 71,777,349
At A A (BfFE10) 48,962,666 40,546,053
150,571,398 112,323,402

6. BRBLAT SR
ARG 2 BT BIE IR () FHIH :

FHA A FIBRIT 3214,460,506 45 IC
(20224F : 14,986,883 7C)

T BORA

Yl WL KB4 IH
13

AL = 4T 10 14(a)
A ARG U T B RLSR Ak
14(c)

A S E AR 2R 2 65 55 B

AN REAER I
AT 5
RIS 2 B AE 17
oAb RS 2 A
L, WL R kA H

T
453 A
AT it 2 B,

2023
HKD
BT

(213,946,642)

15,339,074

160,371,162
2,167,570

580,298

3,589,500
442,000
2,000,117

27,037

47,963

(259,913,500)
2,339,220

152,612,032
2,473,581

516,685

138,781
493,370
29,625
8,497,518

84,848

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEMe

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to

MR A s A A 25 (91465 383(1) 4% S A m) (B i #  1)
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of ik VERE) B 5 23 bl i 2 AR A EE S A T
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

2023

HKD

BT
Directors’ fees A - -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e, G K S AE ] = -
Discretionary bonuses T A6 21 - -
Retirement scheme contributions FER/ N URET e = -

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees
are as follows:

8. HEBRRFER
T4 A R R R A A F

2023
HKD
#HIT
Salaries and allowances i BOE
(Including discretionary performance bonuses) (B GG SR L) 16,528,125 17,395,237
Retirement benefit scheme contributions TR ARAR I S 180,000 180,000
16,708,125 17,575,237

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose

P < AT LA 98 F 2 Al S d i R L 2 B0

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 #5 7T % 2,500,000 7

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7C %.3,000,000% 7T 1 1
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 ¢ %.3,500,000%% 7T 2 2
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 7C %4,000,000% 7T = 1
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 7€ 24,500,000 70 = 1

HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000 4,500,001 7T % 5,000,000 76

B 2022/23 4R 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEA W 55 i R B

31 March 2023 20234E3H31H

9. GOVERNMENT RENT AND RATES 9. WHAKEM

Mo RH B 2200 2 A3 BT dn T

An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows:

2023

HKD

BT
Hotel 5 744,400 706,000
Corporate office NGRS 14,460,506 14,986,883
15,204,906 15,692,883
Public Mission Teams (note 10) A A BA (Bt 10) 339,878 353,439
15,544,784 16,046,322

10. AAREREN S H
SR A A A B B K A W G5 R R 1
SR AR 3 A A o 3 5 T 7 4 2 A T R )
252 B 28 A o T B S, A S

financial statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. &

10. PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES, NET

All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant
purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running
of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated

Such expenses comprise:

2023
HKD
BT
Staff costs LA 48,962,666 40,546,053
Information technology facilities maintenance fees BERHL 1% f R IR 9 25,279,253 24,751,347
Financial assistance to industry start-ups fia] b P A ] £ L 5 36 % B 91,865,327 92,323,480
Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, RS (WF 2 55, HgE,
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) TAES KB 22,742,959 16,134,043
Government rent and rates i K 2 i 339,878 353,439
Public mission communications VATAN L R 4,939,763 4,336,536
Operating expenses ZE 6,425,331 16,503,206
Government project expenses B A S 32,145,205 76,797,334

Recovery of direct expenses (including government
grants of HKD40,046,315 (2022: HKD79,856,461)

Wi Im] B4 S (A48 UM b B
40,046,315 J0 (20224 :

79,856,46170)) (49,634,213) (88,928,095)
Interest income on redemption of an investment at fair W 1] 3% 28 RMME A HAt 4 1 ik 35
value through other comprehensive income Z BRI - (2,334,269)
Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value T8 SO E T A B 2 55 B %
through profit or loss, net I P T 3,589,500 138,781
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186,655,669 180,621,855

11. INCOME TAX

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

11. Fii5%

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did

not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year

(2022: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the

Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's effective tax

rate is as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5%

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised

Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate

12. DEFERRED TAX

FR LA 5

F T A S A A 45 5 9F T T 7 i 7 AR AT A R TR BE
i F L O T U R A3 A R (20224F
7).

T TR R 1 B R A B R BT B B
85 55 4% AR P 92 B B % 1 3R 2 B 2 X ik
T

(246,552,505) (219,273,108)

TR EEBR16 5% H 2Bk (40,681,163) (36,180,063)

WEARBLZ I\ (17,933,946) (12,422,667)
ENIEN i 16,421 11,441,673
A A Z B0 58,598,688 37,161,057
9 AR 4 A S ot R A 5 2 Bl A - -

12, BEHIM

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

BEIERLIGE ™ BB 2 AR E T

At 1 April 2021

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2022 and
1 April 2022

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2023

T20214F4H 1 H

ER T GEA)
IR 3 JE AL 10T

F202243H31H &
20224E4H1H

FERTHGE (PN
AR 2 32 S8 B 5T

T202343131H

(165,183,447) 165,184,732 (1,285) -
(12,182,248) 12,187,136 (4,888) -
(177,365,695) 177,371,868 (6,173) -
(46,514,094) 47,056,088 (541,994) -
(223,879,789) 224,427,956 (548,167) -
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12.

13.

162

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising
from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HKD3,173,000,000
(2022: approximately HKD2,818,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry
date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12, BRI (42)

H T T 1 W R A 7 o A ok B TR TR ) A8 IR %
BUITUR 45, WO 3045 5 B 1507 77 A 2 I 2
B INB BV, T 202343 H31H, A4
[ 2 K 1 B35 41 £ 4 3,173,000,000 %5 75 (2022
4F : #92,818,000,00085 70) . BiI = HiIF T E H)
A, (AZFEBLS5 R TfIA .

13. ¥, #EBERIEF

Cost TS

At 1 April 2021 FongiAe SOOTI3TI6 214937912 1316895121 247973381 60886204 200,129933 244,186,851 710,000 - 5902843228
Addition & - - 46,698,207 3,380,543 - 35,084,727 7779885 - 25325526 338,268,888
Disposal /written off e /i - - - (B43%13) - - (8757054 - - (32192187
At 31 March 2022 F2%38318 3,557,123,776 274,937,912 1,363593,328 225,918,791 60,886,254 235,214,660 245,209,682 710,000 245,325,526 6,208,919,929
Addition FE - - 42202831 7403488 - 169673846 16,840,104 - 206454780 442,775,055
Disposal written off e /W - - - (62119.029) - - (16017413) - - (T6136439)
At 31 March 2023 T23F3A318 3,557,123,776 274,937,912 1,405,796,165 171,203,254 60,886,254 404,888,506 248,032,313 710,000 451,980,306 6,575,558,546

Depreciation and impairment  FIARAE

At 1 April 2021 FanFsAIA 1309423251 101240878 1191523786 232720543 60886254 87138160 161932683 086,333 - 3145553488
Depreciation charge for the year  FAHFIAF 71,142,965 5999336 17921671 6571112 - 20098039 24899244 23,487 - 1504812082
Disposal written off % /i - - - (BB - - (6TH7084) - - (32092187)
At 31 March 2022 Fa022£38318 1,386,566,216 107,196,012 1,209,445,457 213,858,522 60,886,254 107,236,199 180,074,873 710,000 - 3,205,973,533
Deprecation charge for the year — FRHTHFE 77,142,965 5995334 23080350 3,803,858 - 6793008 2363547 - - 160371162
Disposalfwritten off i /s - - - (62119029) - - (139%0378) - - (Tb109401)
At 31 March 2023 FAN23EIA3NAE 1,463,709,181 113,151,346 1,232,525,807 155,543,355 60,886,254 133,989,307 189,720,044 710,000 - 3,350,235,294
Net book value KEAE

At 31 March 2023 FEsAsA 209341459 161786566 173210358 15,659,899 - 270899199 58312309 - 51980306 3225323252
At 31 March 2022 TUnEIAAE 2170557560 167741900 154147871 12,060,269 - 127978461 65134809 - 25305506 294294639
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Notes:

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50 years at a
lump sum initial premium of HKD1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the
rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the "Cyberport Portion”) has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

On 1 December 2022, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 9082 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50
years at a lump sum initial premium of HKD1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to

3% of the rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 9 December 2022, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 9082 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the "Cyberport Portion”) has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre
funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2023, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) and the hotel building amounted to
HKD6,730 million (2022: HKD6,747 million) and HKD402 million (2022: HKD394 million),
respectively. The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HKD2,093 million
(2022: HKD2,171 million) and HKD162 million (2022: HKD168 million), respectively. The fair
value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings services and
support facilities) as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 were determined based on a valuation
carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) and the hotel building falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and is determined using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected

rental income using a capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.

0]

(ii)

(ii))

(iv)

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

13. ¥, HlBEKiRE (48)

B

T20004E5 H 22 H 7 i DCBUR ) A 20 1) B He 42 B 28 W) 4t
R LT W R R A BE8969 5 2 L, R EMI R
WA 41,0008, BRI A504E, TR AL G AR Y T
i s BN I i R TR 2 T L (3%

F20004F5 H 24 H, AN ) 5 B B3 B4 FIAT 32— (3 - Ly
W, A, AN R T PR 43 RELTHE Db 0 2 38 i st B
89695 Hrh—Fp 4 1ty ("B HEER ST ), HAULAALE .

F20224E 1211V H 7 Wb A DX BUR 1) A 20 ) B 42 A 28 w4t
RO TR MR N BE9082 5 Z Ll — WM AR
WA 41,0009 00, B A504F, T A AF AL B AU Y T
AR A I R T AL (3%

F20224E12 A9 0, AL A BRI RAT S — 03 40 AL B
B, R, A )N e MR 3 T TP 2 9 ot B
90825 Hrh— > L (“ECRSHEREAN) MR A AL

AR T T AR GT 3,

oL e i T BURE AN B Ve ORI TR A BTH 2 Al & R
AR L Z B,

F202343 31 H, FfEHAST GERMX ZEFRS S
SCHR L) B I AR T 2 4 S E 4 M 67.3042 7 T (2022
AF 2 67.4TALUETE) K 4.0212 W TC (20224F © 3.9412#7C) , %
SRS Z KT REL A 5114 20,9342 5 T (20224F = 21,7142
JC) B 1.624Z ¥ 70 (20224F : 1,682 0T) . %G R A LR
T (ERIMER 2T IR S5 5 SR B T 20234F 1202243 H
31 H 22 SU A B T AR 47 2 ST el Al L 0 725 7 ] o A ol ]
(Fils) AR RIHEAT Z AN (B E E

FEIE AR T O [FIAH R 2B TR 57 55 SRR ) Bl TG R T
ZASMEIE T A SR ESE G Z M=, TR B A
Moy IR, 05 R R ERAT Rk T2 3R B i A e 1
W2 GEARAL H A R AT BT R
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14. LEASES 14. T

The Group as a lessee AR PRy A

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment, AEMRHEEFHEANDAZEYL., HhAEX
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used &, WA . EEX REEIT A MRS S
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years, 2, BAEYN T IINNE, WA E R
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area . RN i R i AR X AR ST 8 B4R, AE
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term TE AT B W AR . AR P T A S H R A a]
of two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease ASFHGE AT RS A 4, HAE T ek — 28R,

payments, which are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets (@) i AR
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the A S5 PR il AR 7 2 N T AL R 4F N AR B
movements during the year are as follows: N

As at 1 April 2021 F2021F4H1H 4,273,846 350,430 95,325 1,112,064 5,831,665
Depreciation charge AL (1,554,120) (188,671) (95,325) (635,465) (2,473581)
As at 31 March 2022 and T2022/F3H31H K

as at 1 April 2022 F2022F4H1H 2,719,726 161,759 - 476,599 3,358,084
Depreciation charge AL (1,554,120) (136,851) - (476,599) (2,167,570)
As at 31 March 2023 T2023FF3H31H 1,165,606 24,908 - - 1,190,514
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LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

14. LEASES (continued) 14, FH5T (£42)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AERRIE N AR (85)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) FHEEHfoi
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the FELBT Aot 2 e T (8 S AR 2R BN -

year are as follows:

2023
HKD
BT
Carrying amount at 1 April T4AVH Z WK (E 3,534,463 6,067,535
Accretion of interest recognised during the year AF IR A 2 RIS 3 47,963 84,848
Payments 133K (2,302,760) (2,617,920)
Carrying amount at 31 March F3H31H ZMKHi{E 1,279,666 3,534,463
Analysed into: AyME A
Current portion WzhE s 1,279,666 2,254,797
Non-current portion e shi s - 1,279,666
1,279,666 3,534,463
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) to FHGT it 2 B 09 43 b7 16 28 6 W 55 4R £ B
the consolidated financial statements. 30(a) MK %,
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) THigFMHEWINZ BHWT -
follows:

2023
HKD
BT
Interest on lease liabilities FHAT T 47,963 84,848
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets A FAAL G 7= 47 1H A 52 2,167,570 2,473,581
Expense relating to short-term leases PSSR S
(included in public mission activities expenses) (P AA A A iG s 3 ) - 37,688
Variable lease payments not included in the R AFAGT G fot 1 5 2 Al B 5%
measurement of lease liabilities (included in P (PP A=A ZE )
other operating expenses) 580,298 478,997
Total amount recognised in profit or loss TR A 2 KA 2,795,831 3,075,114
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14. LEASES (continued)

166

(d)

(e)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Variable lease payments

The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains
variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is
used to print without steady usage. Management's objective is to align
the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides
information on the Group's variable lease payments, including the

magnitude in relation to fixed payments:

Fixed rent I A 4
A A AT AS AL 42

Variable rent only

14, A5 (£2)

ASRBE N AR (82)

(d)  FIARAEGTAT 3K
AEWTH I aERENHAT G, K
AR R AR A ST ED () 0 e 2 O 5 T AR
K. 5O i R AR AT ENE R
AEMENIAZUFTE, THEZHR
ST S S BAMTEN AR X AR, TR
AT A SR P 0 T AR RS A R 2 TR, AR
AR [ A R R

104,000 = 104,000
- 106,403 106,403
104,000 106,403 210,403

Fixed rent i 5 A 4
AL A Al AR AL 4

Variable rent only

156,000 - 156,000
- 23,080 23,080
156,000 23,080 179,080

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable
lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage per carton
box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is
HKD473,895 (2022: HKD455,917).

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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A, AAEAMA -, HEAESREA
AR ATE 520 9 14> ARA 47 12 T 30 500 W) A A 9%
AT 2 3R, AR 4F B I FLOT AE B 45 P A 2 W]
AT AT 3K A1 473,895 I (20224F 455,917 #
JG) o

(e)  FHTT M BH 4 0 1 A0 7 25 B W 55 R I T
25(b) 4% 5%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to
pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HKD228,407,148 (2022: HKD274,900,383), details of which are
included in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —AEN
After one year but within two years — 4 5 AR
After two years but within three years PR G H =41
After three years but within four years AR H YA
After four years but within five years VU 4 5 AR LA Y
After five years ARG

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

14. FA5T (££)

AGERAE D HRLA

AR AR A AR AR 255 LU 22 1 o L e o T R (R
H13) . MGEARMHISERM P LA RUES,
TR AN B R AR e &, AR THERN
WA 2 & W\ 4228407, 1485 7T (20224F -
274,900,383 0) , A7 K VEIE BT 455 W 5 R Bt
o

TR, AR AE S5 1T 3 R RS
S E FEL BT T R SR 3 1) R i f A 7 AR A S
B

2023
HKD
BT

208,076,465 197,919,217

125,794,188 101,600,930
57,957,241 39,316,311
38,795,692 15,112,133
19,974,409 9,580,804
19,440,120 29,633,651

470,038,115 393,163,046
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15.

168

CYBERPORT MACRO FUND INVESTMENTS

Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income ZRARE

- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value

Debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Unlisted debt investments, at fair value

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2022: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end of
the reporting period.

The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HKD200 million, the CMF
aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early financing and promote
the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April 2021,
Cyberport had committed to inject an additional amount of HKD200 million
into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later-stage
investments.
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15. HBERRGWLESRE

2023
HKD
BT

BEZAANMEITT AR EKE

— F b RARRE, &AM E 119,976,069 263,803,894
BAAMEITTNRBZHSRE

— b s, A RME 5,876,221 9,465,721

125,852,290 273,269,615

AR AR 2 A5 BB SR P T, oA i
AP TR MR € 1 M B A A T
Wi o

B E 202343 431 H LR, ALFIF TR
B 0 R T R AT 0 B AR 4 e 2 AT ] Rl A
(20224 : J5),

ARG 55 BB A h B0 Re N AT AR TR AL 2
WAL, HYEREI I LA RN ET A
ZAEREYE RPN H A AL I AR AUN 3
RESV -

R 25 IR AR S A 3 AT A A b2 Bl 2
T, AR F 20174 KA W HO A1 5 2h B
WAL HE 4, B T 13 8 0] Ik 4 ) B 45 e
BUORAWALWE TG, B TE N RS s ) A1) £ Il 42 £16 30
Tl e I 0 A s 1 KRG 5 e A SRR R TR,
202V4F4 7, B0 k7R 15 1) BIORT vk 15 5% 00l B
WONMEVTRAZHE T, TR R ZEBE Ka B v,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A31H

16. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 16. IEHF KRR
2023
HKD
BT
Current assets B BE=
Financial assets at amortised cost Fo A A B K 2 4 il g 7 - 49,384,925
Investments at fair value through profit or loss F A SO AT AN B 28 2 B0 653,239,404 643,010,512
Total Bt 653,239,404 692,395,437

(a) EHEBI AT IK Z 4 il 7 7~

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

2023
HKD
BT
Listed fixed interest debt securities in Hong Kong & L EERNBHASIES - 49,384,925
The net book amount is analysed as follows: KT HE AT I
Maturing over one year T EE = -
Maturing within one year T—FENEH - 49,384,925
- 49,384,925
Market value of listed debt securities LTSS SR 2 T - 50,088,633
(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (b) &2 RME T ANII#EZ BT
2023
HKD
BT
Listed fixed interest debt securities: Tl R B S
- In Hong Kong — HUHEA 77,937,431 215,922,704
- Outside Hong Kong — Fis B 548,350,666 331,857,123
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities A T EA H e FLE i 55 1E I 26,951,307 95,230,685

653,239,404 643,010,512

B 2022/23 4R 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR W55 R B
31 March 2023 202343 H31H

17.

170

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables RS
Impairment HAE

The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year )]

Impairment losses recognised (note 6)

At end of year FR

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
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AN =B (FHiEe)

17. UK =X

2023

HKD

BT
31,321,571 20,065,753
(3,322,226) (1,322,109)
27,999,345 18,743,644

HTHEPZERE A0 EIOR, AEH LA
A 8 1 FE SR i ] 2 R AR DA A B XU e 2
A, T HTEE AR i U R E AT, AR SR
i A4S P S SRR LIS L W) X
M SR THE I, BIUKREON %8 .

IS S/ REREE VS S L

2023

HKD

BT
1,322,109 1,292,484
2,000,117 29,625
3,322,226 1,322,109

A GE VT A A B0 R A R AT B (E
B, BUTFHRBURLE 035 8, SR ST RYE AT 2
WL R (R A B 7= i 280 2k
T R VF 2 AR I B A Y 2 {5 B AR R 2 B
M) 2 Z A% P o a4 2 R R E
S R WS A 25 2R L BT iR A (E A T
s B AT SRAT A RS A S R UL Bk
LPPRILBIN 2 & AT FEGERL, — R, Rk
K i 4 O — 4 LS 2 S R AT R e T
LS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR T 55 R I T
31 March 2023 20234E3 31 H

17. RIWIK K (£2)
DA 38 910 A 56 A% S 7 e K 8 9 5 6 e 2

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: TE R Bk

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

As at 31 March 2023

F202343H31H

Expected credit loss rate UG SE 5 HR 0% 11.07% 15.57% 16.86% 10.61%
Gross carrying amount (HKD) Wi &5 (#T) 9,779,750 4,585,076 3,371,351 13,585,394 31,321,571
Expected credit losses (HKD) U G54t (#0) - 507,352 524,821 2,290,053 3,322,226

As at 31 March 2022 F20224:3H31H

Expected credit loss rate UG S5 Bk 0% 8.49% 12.03% 16.19% 6.59%
Gross carrying amount (HKD) Wi B (E (#0) 9,473,535 2,765,246 4,320,134 3,506,838 20,065,753
Expected credit losses (HKD) Filifs 555t (#c) - 234,636 519,833 567,640 1,322,109
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18.

172

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments A 3
Lease incentives i
Deposits paid for premises leasing RN AL S AT 2 He
Other deposits Hofib 4
Other receivables oA R iR 5
Impairment E
Analysed into: SRR
Non-current portion Emsh s
Current portion WEhE

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to
their fair value as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. Provision for impairment
on deposits and other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses. In assessing the expected credit loss of deposits
and other receivables, management considers various factors such as the
ageing of the balances, existence of disputes, recent historical payment
patterns, any other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of counterparties and forward-looking information. Management uses
this information to determine whether a provision for impairment is
required either for a specific counterparty or for certain counterparties’
balances that have similar loss patterns overall. The provision for
impairment of other receivables at 31 March 2023 was HKD8,497,518 (2022:
HKD8,497,518).
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18. TR, & K H MR BRI

2023

HKD

BT
10,816,918 18,725,252
4,319,968 11,451,646
- 685,008
1,591,899 1,544,830
25,394,095 28,369,592
42,122,880 60,776,328
(8,497,518) (8,497,518)
33,625,362 52,278,810
2,432,671 5,163,496
31,192,691 47,115,314
33,625,362 52,278,810

e 4 T At S WOk IR 2 A

F20234F J220224E3 H 31 H, %4 K A R e 3k
T T AP N Fe B M . 4 S At S i
I WA AR 4% 1240 A TS 08 B s 4 1 5
MG BT T &, P15 SRR B 025 A LR
A R I AE L SR A SRR )
A 1 I LR K 14 I, 00 81T 4 4 1 A 0 B
BT, TR % 4 R A R M 2 B A Y
THN, EMEEEEZTHE, F0LE AR K.
REIFAEMY, R A AR 525ty
P15 254 5% 1 AT 4] 5 Ath mT 45 k) DA R i s o
o I )Z A I Ll Rl S A A B
TESE T X SO R A RS R R T S
W5 2 AR L Bk, T 202343 H31H,
A R 0 BRI 2 (B AR 7 48,497,518 Wk UG (2022
4F 1 8,497,518%70) .
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. ERNEEEME

2023
HKD
BT
Cash and bank balances e B ARAT S5 AT 114,725,748 143,841,606
Non-pledged time deposit with an original maturity TRBNEFHHE AP T =AHZ
of less than three months when acquired TCHEH E AR 143,389,589 125,560,941
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity THRANEEM A =AU L2
of more than three months when acquired TCHRAR & A7 3K 68,279,468 24,932,864

326,394,805 294,335,411

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit 4147 5 4 48 4t 45 H 48 47 17 2R % DL 77 20 1) 2 i B
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month & = s HIfF S0P A £ H 2 BN B & Tk 2, F2
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, B[R/ F— /N H £ 4E A%, LK H 2 & WGE 5

and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances  sxiFf| 8, 48174517 M & W7 SE N GE B9 e 4
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent g5k H (&2 &I 2 4847,

history of default.

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20. Hit AR R it %A

2023
HKD
BT
Contract liabilities EROli (a) 2,040,980 1,106,162
Other payables HoAt A5 R (b) 193,436 4,127,448
Accruals N2 176,025,519 152,187,006
Receipt in advance TR 16,203,413 5,638,205
Government grants R A0 Bl 4 50,165,008 61,824,524
Provisions ke 8,163,792 8,163,792
Retention payable N AR EE 4 - 2,876,000
252,792,148 235,923,137
Notes: (iR
(a)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @) EARMERELTE
2023
HKD
BT
Short-term advances received from customers a1 E PR J Ak
Income from hotel operation WEH B 2,040,980 1,106,162

The increase in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the increase in short-term 20234 £ £ SR E 5 T P O S T A

advances received from customers at the end of the year. A I A TR,

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months. () FRATRTU G, THBRA A,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEA W 55 i R B
31 March 2023 20234E3 A 31 H

21. RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS 21 HERHEMBERE 23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 23. lRA& (4)
Included in rental deposits are amounts of HKD44,755,419 (2022: T & ¥ & ELHE WU R & F — 48 1 B2 AT 22 30 A summary of the movements in the Group’s share capital is as follows: AL AN BEAR T -
HKD36,327,156) which are not expected to be settled within one year. 44,755,419#5IC (20224F : 36,327,156 #70)
22. DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND 22. KR4GEBES
It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the A R ALARIE R ALA . AEERA
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the A, HKCADL. &% o) )14 BR2A 7] (AR R
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks BRI R KB A R "l 3200045 H 17
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 H 2537 2 B s v Rl ik Rl ) 2 43K
May 2000 (the "Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, PRl ey, ARAE RV, A AR
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common I AR P Ry R 2 S R AR R
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities available GERE it (" 2RS35 ) . At 1 April 2021 Fo02144 1 1H 300.000.002 300 000,002
to the t t d visit the “Shared Cyb t facilities”).
o the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities”) New issues . 238,000,000 238,000,000
Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the AR AL 2 2 BOR, T B AR %= EE
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance W, CWEYE 2 BMAMNK EYEERES (KR At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2023 F00224F3 A 31 H 202344 A 1H 538,000,002 538,000,002
“DMF" i ti d Hefp g I RAGE IR T i
FL_md (the "DMF") accouht to the Capital Reserve account in accordance B3 4 ) K P B AR B VAR A K New issues (Note) B () 446,000,000 446,000,000
with the Group's accounting policy.
During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HKD7,403,488 (2022 N, &HUNT,603,488 1 TT (20224F « 8,545,780 At 31 March 2023 F002343H31 [ 984,000,002 984,000,002
HKD8,545,780) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this W) ZHR SR E R RGBS E
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve account. IR, R, ST WK AL Note: On 15 June 2022, 446,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HKD1 per share to the existing FHEE © F20224F6 15 H, e BT TR A% 1) A 23 R AR &
AR B RAMFIR shareholders of the Company, which resulted in proceeds of HKD446,000,000. AT446,000,000 8 %550 B, $R75 7 15 3 5 446,000,000 5 IT .
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. B4 24. RESERVES 24, &
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the AR AR VT AR AR B A A BE 2 A i A AR E)
2023 current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of BIT LR AR L,
HKD changes in equity.
BT
Issued and fully paid: ERAT B -
984,000,002 (2022: 538,000,002) ordinary shares 984,000,002 (20224F :
538,000,002/% ) i % 984,000,002 538,000,002
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25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 25. LS8 & FH B RME

(a) Fl VTG 3 B 2k s AR 3

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

At 1 April 2021 20214441 H 117,501,104 6,067,535
Changes from financing cash flows R R ) 32,237,246 (2,533,072)
Realisation of government grants U AN B4R I (87,913,826) -
Interest expense S - 84,848
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows NEARERE TR CATRE - (84,848)
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 F20224E3 31 H BT 20224F64 1 1H 61,824,524 3,534,463
Changes from financing cash flows A SRR 71,501,310 (2,254,797)
Realisation of government grants R AR B 228 1 (83,160,826) -
Interest expense AL - 47,963
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows ARNGE RS2 EARLE - (47,963)
At 31 March 2023 F202343H31H 50,165,008 1,279,666

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated

(b) FHBRZBLER A
TR B B R R BB v AU

statement of cash flows is as follows: T
2023
HKD
BT
Within operating activities TEL BB 654,261 601,533
Within financing activities TERGEE 2 4 2,254,797 2,533,072
2,909,058 3,134,605
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26. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period.

Contracted, but not provided for

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR
via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with
revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA,
government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties of the
Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate holding
company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company], government-
related entities and their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations
in which the Group is able to control or exercise significant influence
and key management personnel of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, approximately 6% (2022: 4%)
of the Group's revenue was rental income, building management
income and other facilities income derived from the Government of
the HKSAR. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the
Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

CATAE R

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A 31 H

26. %18
RSP T R AT DL R BEAR

2023
HKD
BT

330,563,164 799,836,652

27. XBKAR S

(a)

A A A DI RT 3 0oL o B ) ] G i A
EVAT . RIS AW 2 218
AT e 2 T B8 2455 SC I Ty B f 2 GE
L p 7 o DX L ] e ) R
) 2 52 R R 2 SR A G S A I H
Al RN AGEA Z R . R %
FLRl, ORI TT G BRI A W SR 2
Al (RN TIBRAN) . BRI S AR R R R 2
A AR G PR RE 4 ) R 5 i 2 F Al
SR R Al LR A SR 2 EEAE BB,

B A 202343 H31 HILFE, KA FBIFX
BURF Z AR A N . 4% 52  B N % At 3 e
W 2 5 AR SEFTN 2 6% (20224F = 4%)
ST A %55 IR 55 B4 6 TE Al 45 0 A Hp 4 A 4 A
Z N BORIEAT,

5 E BRI R R R MR A R 2 R
TEHRA . G B R R R

NS A BN ) AR S AR AR S5 T

SR Z A VRS T RS W S5 AR I I TE 7
L8 iz,
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

28. MRFIMTWEMITA
BB TR T H AR Z IR 0T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR T 55 R I T
31 March 2023 202343 431 H
28. REFKNP W LR T A (L)
20224E3/31H

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
31 March 2022

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2023
Financial assets

20234E3H31H
SR

Deferred rental receivables B AE R iR 452 - - - 6,525,764 6,525,764
Cyberport Macro Fund investments B R A A4 R 119,976,069 - 5,876,221 - 125,852,290
Investments in securities WEFH % - 653,239,404 - - 653,239,404
Trade receivables RO R - - - 27,999,345 27,999,345
Financial assets included AT, &R
in prepayments, deposits PICGRIZ B R e
and other receivables - - - 18,488,476 18,488,476
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries R it[al 2 fif 8 2 & 25 - - - 201,442 201,442
Cash and cash equivalents e RNEEETE - - - 326,394,805 326,394,805
119,976,069 653,239,404 5,876,221 379,609,832 1,158,701,526
Financial liabilities SRR

Financial assets

R

Deferred rental receivables A ] 4 - - - 10,453,908 10,453,908
Cyberport Macro Fund investments BB A S 5 VR 263,803,894 - 9,465,721 - 273,269,615
Investments in securities A % - 643,010,512 - 49,384,925 692,395,437
Trade receivables INZi i - - - 18,743,644 18,743,644
Financial assets included in AT FI, e REA
prepayments, deposits MO 2 4 it =
and other receivables - - - 22,098,154 22,098,154
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries — RZi [l 5 it /& 2 7 R - - - 1,938,909 1,938,909
Cash and cash equivalents W R EA - - - 294,335,411 294,335,411
263,803,894 643,010,512 9,465,721 396,954,951 1,313,235,078
Financial liabilities e v

Trade payables AT IR 72,459,276
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals TN Al RS A5 R0 B R 3k 2 4 il 6 £5 192,436,064
Rental and other deposits A4 T Ho Al e 4 103,973,471
Amount due to the immediate holding company WA s B B O 254,303,568
Lease liabilities T 5T 971 A5t 1,279,666

624,452,045
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Trade payables RLA I K 45,531,974
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals A H Al A5 0 B T2 2 e il i 161,787,716
Rental and other deposits FH 4 R Hoph 4% 4 94,287,294
Amount due to the immediate holding company ISENRERD Y NCIE ) 254,303,568
Lease liabilities 5T f1 fot 3,534,463

559,445,015
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows:

29. EMITEZNANMEBERLAANMEER

R Kot Wl QT W /AW X E NN RS]
S B 2 B A T RERSN) WF

Carrying amounts Fair values
KEE ARME
2023 2022 2023 2022
HKD HKD HKD HKD
Financial assets SRR
Equity investments designated 6 N S TN A
at fair value through other A TR G 2 AR
comprehensive income 119,976,069 263,803,894 119,976,069 263,803,894
Debt investments at fair value TN SR E ARG 2
through profit or loss i 5% % 5,876,221 9,465,721 5,876,221 9,465,721
Investments in securities IE 5 % 9% 653,239,404 692,395,437 653,239,404 693,099,145

779,091,694 965,665,052 779,091,694 966,368,760

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 were assessed
to be insignificant.
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SREPE a2 A SR E LT AT B (BA ER
Ui 3 R BR AN ) A7 2 YT 2 By o A TR A
W, NHN Iy B AR TS A RN E

LT At 2 28 ot (6 7% o FH BN m] A5 L2 (L4 K
5 PRI S 45 ARSI T H 2 Rl 3R, 4 U0 R R 9 4
TR, AL & T 20234331 H K
202243 7 31 H A 5% 0BT RSH 1 A 8 249 XU 1 > A 1
N FNMEAR SR E AR E K,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of ten (2022: three) unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022 have been estimated using the market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to sales ("EV/S") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by sales measure. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuations carried out by an
independent professional valuer, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair values of nine (2022: thirteen) unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 have been estimated using the recent
market transaction prices.

The fair values of one (2022: two) unlisted debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 have been
estimated using either the market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or rates.
The valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to
calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as EV/S multiple, for each
comparable company identified. The Directors believe that the estimated
fair value resulting from the valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer, which is recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair value of one (2022: nil) unlisted debt investment at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2023 has been estimated using the
recent market transaction prices.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market
prices.

During the period, the Group disposed of a fair value through other
comprehensive income investment with a net proceed of approximately
HKD14.5 million. Accordingly, a loss had been recognised in other
comprehensive income.

25 W55 AR BN T

31 March 2023 202343 H31H

29. TERMIAZANANERAANEER

(%)

T20234E3 H31 H %20224E3 31 H, fEEHA R
(BT AN EAh A T U g 2 T (202245 - =) JE
T RAA G2 AN SN E E R I DA B R oA
AT, AR T AF b w] A T A S0l RS 2 A
VAT, HEATAG(E I, BT,
FRASE AT FF B 5 Ok L w2 AR A A (IR
M), I A ) R ARG T E A R AR A A A
R (1A I EARSER) o AU F T LA
AL AN ELBR UGS 5 T BB T . # A
A, T IR R p ST L Ml A (O PR AR 2 A
N FMHE (T ALEA M SRR KA et B 2 A8
KA FAHEAb 2wk BEHE, FARAE
M H.

T 202343 H31 H %20224F3 31 H, &AL R
M E TN At A TE IR A 2 JUII (20224F « =00
A BT IRA B G 2 S AN E R AT T B S
AR Al T,

T 202343 A31 H J20224E3 A 31 H, &4
B A R 2 — T (20224F « W1) FE LTt S5 %
Bz A ET KA TS E %, REIEIER
AR T A B S 2 ARV AT AR A, EAT AR
I, SR, BB, FTAT B ms ok
JEE A LA A AL (L), R e 2R 51
A AR A B A A A A (8 A A
). FEHINA, T HCEHIA R i g7 Ll Al (8
PG Z Al A SUME I AZEE TSR0 %R) A
AMEZAHREF FALGEIRGER) BEH, I
M IE 2 A E,

T 20234331 H, #AAME T AN AL 2
—IE BT S 2 A AAE (20224F - F) E
SR I W 1T 3 S A A T

BB BB 2 A RN E IR T A AR

I, ARG AR e F A (BT N A A T i i
AV, PB4 1,450 /70T, RIET
LR R LIS IR
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2T EZAANMEBERLAANEBEESR
INSTRUMENTS (continued) (£2)

PR ON T 20234F K 202243 A 31 H 4 < il L AAf
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at (B 2 T RS W] W i N AT 5 () U
31 March 2023 and 2022: 3T

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of

F20234E3H31H

As at 31 March 2023

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation EV/S multiple of peers 3.0x 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
multiples result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD63,000/HKD63,000
B[S & ita LRI EERS Rl A Ml A (B A 2 3.0f% fEHCETE T B %H S B et E R,
/063,000 70 63,0009 5T
Discount for lack of 22.8% 1% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability result in decrease/increase in fair value

by HKD85,000/HKD85,000
ez g 2 ik 22.8% ik BT T BRI %G S B A EE D
H471185,000%% 7T 85,0005 7T

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums B T 2 P e A R T S S S A
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would HEVE R M I 1S A e AL 4
take into account when pricing the investments.
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2R T EZNANERAANEESE
INSTRUMENTS (continued) (£2)

F202343H31H (&)

As at 31 March 2023 (continued)

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation EV/S multiple of peers 1.33x 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
multiples result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD14,000/HKD14,000
AF bl A 9t LIRIER R )l A b A (A 2 1.33f% fEHCETE T B%R S B R ER
14,0009 7T 14,000 7T
Discount for lack of 15.8% 1% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD18,000/HKD18,000
ik Z 3 B M 2 ik 15.8% ik BT T B % S A R E R
W 18,000% 7T 18,0009 7T
Unlisted equity investment  Valuation EV/S multiple of peers 1.5x 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
multiples result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD51,000/HKD51,000
IE b A vt IR R (5] ol A A (A % 1.5f% EHCETE T B %H S B R ER
1/051,0004 5 /51,0009 7T
Discount for lack of 11.4% 1% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD57,000/HKD57,000
Bz i i e 2 I ik 11.4% ik BTt T %4 S B et g m
57,0004 5T 57,0009 G
Unlisted equity investment  Valuation EV/S multiple of peers 2.0x 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
multiples result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD212,000/HKD213,000
AE bl A B Bt il (R 5L [ ol A AP (A % 2.01% EHCETE T B % S B A R ER
170212,000% 7T 213,000 7T
Discount for lack of 22.8% 1% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD321,000/HKD319,000
BTN 2L 228%  fTEES FEO%E SRA RN EMD
H4/n321,000% 75, 319,000% 70
Unlisted equity investment  Valuation EV/S multiple of peers 4.7x 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
multiples result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD1,000/HKD1,000
AF bl e A £ Bt il (E R 5L I ol A Ml AN A % 4715 T T % BN S ER
Wb 1,000#5C 1,000 7T
Discount for lack of 11.4% 1% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability have no impact to the result
k2 T s Ak 11.4% ik EF %A S S BUT T R
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2T EZAANMEBERLAANEBEESR
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2023 (continued)

184

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

AE LT A B fh{E A2

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation

multiples
A b A £ Bt AR5
Unlisted debt investment Valuation

multiples
P LB s % i (B 5 %

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

B LT A B M {E 2L

Unlisted equity investment  Adjusted net
asset value
Ak L1l AR £ Bt L%
Bt el
Unlisted equity investment  Adjusted net
asset value
A b A £ Bt 2
Bty e
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EV/S multiple of peers

[ Al A A7

Discount for lack of
marketability

= a2 ik

EV/S multiple of peers

[ ol ol {81 5

Discount for lack of
marketability

Bz WA 2 ik

EV/S multiple of peers

[ ol ol {8 5 K

Discount for lack of
marketability

ez M a2 ik

EV/S multiple of peers

Rl A Ml A (B A
Discount for lack of
marketability

k= T A 2 ik
Not applicable ("N/A")

AN H

N/A

5.8x

5.8f%

11.4%

11.4%

7.95x

7.951%

22.8%

22.8%

1.83x

1.831%

22.8%

22.8%

2.79x

2.79F%
23.0%

23.0%
N/A

(£2)
F20234E3 H31H (&)

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD46,000/HKD46,000

fEEC BT B % S BN A E
/046,000 0 46,0009 5T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD92,000/HKD92,000

ik EF BRI %3 S B et E D
H4/192,0004 5C 92,0009 70

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD142,000/HKD142,000

58 LT T %K S B SRAE
/0 142,000% 5T 142,000 70

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD305,000/HKD303,000

ik BT FRO%H FEA RMMEBD
H4/1305,000% 7T~ 303,000% 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would

result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD54,000/HKD54,000

fEHCETE T B %H S B At R
/054,000 75 54,000% 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD76,000/HKD76,000

Prik BT ERI%R S B R E D
476,000 5T 76,0009 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
have no impact to the result

FEHCETE T B 2 G BUT AT 5 i

1% increase/decrease in discount would
have no impact to the result

ik EF BRI %0E A 2 G EUT TR R

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
have no impact to the result

BT T B 9%H A 2 G BUE TR M

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
have no impact to the result

BT T BB AR 2 S BUL T i
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2R T EZNANERAANEESE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2022

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation P/S multiple of peers

multiples

A iy e A BB i {EAR 2 I ol 717 41 75 %

Discount for lack of
marketability

SRZ T YE 2 ik

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would
take into account when pricing the investments.

3.51%

20%

20%

(£2)
F20224:3H31H

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD13,000/HKD13,000

fEE BT B %K S B A S ER
/13,0009 56 13,000 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD66,000/HKD66,000

ik BT B % K S B R E D
H/66,0004 75 66,0007 7T

ez W a2 ik e AR W E T 2 5 E N
VR E M I 2275 1 A i A S AT Ak A

Unlisted equity investment  Option model Volatility
pricing
model

A LTl A BBt WBCEMBIA BeEh =

Risk free rate

FRNEES

P/S multiple of peers

(el ol i 5 45

Unlisted equity investment  Recent
transaction

Discount applied to to
the transaction price
pending completion

JE b A BB A5 RIEAE g 2 ik

Unlisted equity investment  Probability Percentage change of

weighting market capitalisation
method
6 b A BB WAk T T 73 AR 2l

Unlisted debt investment Binomial tree Risk free rate

pricing
model

Ik b i o5 vt ZHi JC UG ] %
FE AN AR

64.7%

64.7%

2.3%

2.3%

51

50%

50%

(0.58%)

(0.58%)

0.5%

0.5%

1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD56,000/HKD56,000

Wsh# BT B %R S BN e E e
756,000 7T 56,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in increase/decrease in fair
value by HKD56,000/HKD56,000

TR AN Z TR B %K S 3N i
#hn /W 2056,000% 7T 56,000 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD96,000/HKD96,000

58 BT B % B e e
96,0009 75 96,000% 7T
1% increase/decrease in discount would

result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD600,000/HKD600,000

Wik BT TR S B i E B
1 11600,000%5 7T 600,000 7C

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

TEREGFIZ TR 1% A2 55
AT 5 )

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

TERBEF A L TE /R B 1%H R 2 53
FEfTR M
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2T EZAANMEBERLAANEBEESR

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2023

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Investments in securities
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(£8)

A Sl S
TRIRAGE M G TH 2N e A

BA RO RZ B
F20234F3 /131 H

16 8 0N S (T N oA
A T A 2 IR 43 %
- 87,397,789 32,578,280 119,976,069
N SR E T A B2 2
i 5548 %% - - 5,876,221 5,876,221
i 5 % Wt 626,288,097 26,951,307 - 653,239,404
626,288,097 114,349,096 38,454,501 779,091,694
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £RITEZAANMEBERLAANEER

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

(%)

A SR (5%)
BA R RZ B - (8h)
TF20224£3 /131 H

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Investments in securities

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2022: Nil). The
movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

TERE S SR E T AT Al
ST AR 2 AR BB

HARMETAB G Z
ot 5 Bt

UEZR A VR

- 227,270,824 36,533,070 263,803,894
- - 9,465,721 9,465,721
547,779,827 95,230,685 - 643,010,512
547,779,827 322,501,509 45,998,791 916,280,127

N, ARV, B RS R NI
BN AMEIE (20224F : T0) . H=HNZ A M E

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income or profit or loss:

At 1 April
Transfer from Level 2 during the year
Transfer to Level 2 during the year

Total losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Total (loss)/gain recognised in other

comprehensive income

At 31 March

MR
2023
HKD
BT
FE S SO A T N A 4 TR 2 5
Biiiz R
F4ATH 45,998,791 24,394,914
CHBEE I 135,144,726 37,201,654
AL YN it - (16,433,390)
TG Bt R A Z = BUSH
(3,589,500) (84,334)
FHA AW A (SR
Wi £ A (139,099,516) 919,947
F3H31H 38,454,501 45,998,791
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30.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2023

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2022
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Financial risk factors
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them
by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.
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29.

30.

SMIAZAANERAANEZESR
(&)

A RMAEE Y (82)

N S 2 5 f

F 20234331 H

ARAE 202343 A 31 H I AT #24 e (8 1
2 AR,

F 20224331 H
AL T 202243 H 31 H I AL 28 fe i (8 it
B2 A,

R, BRERABT S, B REE Rzt
TCHe R A R E &, IR TC AR AR = )
(20224F = &),

W55 R B E 72 B AR R R

(a) 55 XU &
AU E ST R AR, 0
S A SR T R 2 AR
SR A B 2 55 8 Y DL KB B
SEAH, FEEMTRZ ERANR A
U2 EER S

A% 4 A 4 i T HL A 2 S R M 15 BE X
K. A KUK . 3 3l Ve XU B B T XU
ISR A I o A T A A 0% KU 2 B
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(YN

AR AT B B A O H T
BN A DY R R 2 R S AL
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I 2 A B XU 2 R A L T 7R 52 ke A 931 %
Z AR BN

R FENEE RAFAR G B

R AR HE T AR P 5 SR BOR 2 65 SRR K
eE i SEXURS: (2 SR I R, BR
A FE A VORI 4IRS o 22 A 85y B AT 3R
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. & XK EIE B AR RIBUER (42)

(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2023

() WM HEHEE (5)
fE BT (£2)
IR FIN G RAF AR 7B B 2B (4)

T202343H31H

Trade receivables’
Deferred rental receivables®

Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables*

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

- Not yet past due
Cash and cash equivalents

- Not yet past due

RO
i S ST 2

A B s
FARRL i 2
B

IS SREN s VAT EN
L ES

Wi BB (HBUH
— ORI

B

it

= = - 31,321,571 31,321,571

6,525,764 = = = 6,525,764
18,488,476 8,497,518 - - 26,985,994
201,442 = = = 201,442
326,394,805 = = - 326,394,805
351,610,487 8,497,518 - 31,321,571 391,429,576
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As at 31 March 2022

T 20224331 H

decrease as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (note
15) as at 31 March 2023.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose

of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

(continued) (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) 55 KRR 3 (82) (a) Financial risk factors (continued) (@) W55 R R 2 (&)
Credit risk (continued) 5 R (22) Equity price risk JBE A LR
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) IR 1 U T AF A 7 B2 (48) Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities JBE A PR 8 AR TUE 25 2 A A {8 DR AR S8 AN Bl IE

I 2 M EAE S AR Z MBS, T 20234F3 H
31H, A B KK B 22801
TE AN SR T A 42 1 4 2 R AR 4 E
AN RA B e (BHAE15)

AR SR TR HIR AR AR H R KU 2
JBA BB SRNME AR 10% (I A HAb2E
AR AR HR T AAEATBL S5 52 M ) 2
TREE, S HTIN S, AR S5 2
FMERE B AR,

Investments in securities” ISR B 49,384,925 - - - 49,384,925
Trade receivables’ NS - - - 20,065,753 20,065,753
Deferred rental receivables® 3 4 R il 4 10,453,908 - - - 10,453,908
Financial assets included AT, 176 )
in prepayments, deposits Hofb R 2
and other receivables* SR 22098154 8497518 - - 30,595,672 As at 31 March 2023 2023431310
Amounts due from fellow IGE ) PGE e Unlisted equity investments: B b AR
subsidiaries - Equity investments designated at fair value — T8 AT A A A T i dR 2
- Not yet past due — Mk 1.938,909 _ _ _ 1,938,909 through other comprehensive income Je A 4% 119,976,069 11,997,607
Cash and cash equivalents W& R E I H
- Not yet past due — i R 294,335,411 - - - 294335411 As at 31 March 2022 T20224F31131H
Unlisted equity investments: E R &S a7
378211307 8497518 . 20065753 406774578 - Equity investments designated at fair value — FR S R E T A A A T g 2
through other comprehensive income JRe A % 263,803,894 26,380,389
For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for A DA R 7 R G ok 2 REWOH T S AR AR A * Excluding accumulated losses « A fE 25

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality
of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from

trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through operating cash flows and advances from the immediate
holding company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The maturity profile of the Group’'s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

30. M X EE B IR RBUR ()

(a)

Vot 55 R R 3% (%)

LBl B XU

T B0 U < UG 4 A 5 A A RE B 21 ) 2 B
5155 2 ARG o oI 2 0 3l U < XL A A
75 7 i B A Uk e L e B W) 2 B A
Frrets ol BonT (s i Bt .

ARSI 2 O R U M 4% T UM 2
Vrawok, WRORAERE L BB A A, DL
S BRI T A B R

AL T A WA & AR R &
RIS LA

Trade payables R AT IR 72,459,276

Financial liabilities included in A At R A 3R K

= = 72,459,276

= = 192,436,064
26,211,606 19,836,811 103,973,471

= = 254,303,568
= = 1,279,666

other payables and accruals — Biit#% F 2 4l 77 it 192,436,064
Rental and other deposits TR 4 B Ho At e 4 57,925,054
Amount due to the immediate R4} B 38242 15 2 ) 30

holding company 254,303,568
Lease liabilities T ot 1,279,666

578,403,628

26,211,606 19,836,811 624,452,045

- - 45,631,974

- - 161,787,716
16,011,924 20,315,232 94,287,294
- - 254,303,568
1,279,666 - 3,534,463

Trade payables R A5F e 45,531,974
Financial liabilities included in A FHAt R A 35 K
other payables and accruals  Riit#% iz 4l 5 161,787,716
Rental and other deposits FH 4 R HoAth 4% 4= 57,960,138
Amount due to the immediate 4o B 42475 B2 7] 2550
holding company 254,303,568
Lease liabilities L 715 2,254,797
521,838,193

17,291,590 20,315,232 559,445,015
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Currency risk

The Group’s functional currency is HKD. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars ("USD"). As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HKD
and the USD to be insignificant.

(b) Capital management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March
2023 and 2022, the Group was in a net cash position.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 July 2023, 714,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HKDI1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of
the Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of
HKD714,000,000 into the Company.

The Company has identified a cybersecurity incident involving unauthorized
third-party access to certain servers of the Company in mid-August 2023.
The Company took immediate steps to promptly execute mitigation actions,
launch an investigation with independent cybersecurity experts, and seek
for legal advice. As of the date of this report, no litigation nor material
impact was noted.

LEA W55 I R B
31 March 2023 202343 A 31 H
30. WS MR EIE B PR RBUR (4)

() WM HEHEE (5)
BRI XUER:
AL ZIREL T AT, ALPRME Z
BLTR Bk [ DA A BE T (20 T
("FIT")) WWEZESFE Y. B T#eE %
TEHA, ARG IL S T2 LR
ARG AR

(b) BEAHE B
ARSI GEAAE B 2 3 B H AR A (R AR SR P 4
SR 2RI, T A I A A [ i B ok
A% Gy A R A G, R AE R d AR 2 BE A4S
My, DA BEARA, N, RATEZH
b, BOR SR F IF AR AR 5,

AL 2 R AR IR 5 2 B oy,
ZE IR T B AR Ry, I AE 0 I VR B
RARGEA G5, AL AT 20234F % 20224F3
F 31 H ¥4 T B4 S BUIR L,

3. REHEEM

F 202347 H12H, AN W HE#EERA R
RATIHBEK 714,000,000 H A5 15 T (B 195 T 19 8
B, A A A AN W (B 714,000,000 #5 TG 94X
.

T20234E8 A f, AAFKRI T —M%%eE
PR, A Al R B R R B =
o A% R BT B SR B i g8 AT £ VS E B i
ML MGG e R RIFME, HIREER
W BEARE B, &R IR ASE K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2023 20234E3 31 H

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2023
2023 HKD
HKD 2R
BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES IE 3 S f5
NON-CURRENT ASSETS P Development maintenance fund RS 371,802,919 379,206,407
Property, plant and equipment Yl HLES Rk A 3,225,323,252  2,942,946,396 Lease liabilities TG - 1.279.666
Right-of-use assets il AL 7= 1,190,514 3,358,084
Deferred rental receivables 326 4iE S5 Wi FH 4 6,525,764 10,453,908 Total non-current liabilities Ak i ) 7 At B 371,802,919 380,486,073
Investment in a subsidiary B 2 ) 4% e 1 1
Prepayments and deposits TOUAH % i 48 432,671 5,163,496 Net assets Ve e E 3,381,864,484  3,170,556,023
Total non-current assets IE it 8 %= A 3,233,472,202  2,961,921,885 EQUITY R
Share capital Jili&S 984,000,002 538,000,002
CURRENT ASSETS R AT Reserves (Note) fif & (BFHE) 2,397,864,482 2,632,556,021
Inventories PRy 376,004 171,488
Trade receivables NI R 27,999,345 18,743,644 Total equity &Rl 3,381,864,484  3,170,556,023
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR, i 4 T LAt 7 e 3ROT 25,029,441 36,109,606
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries Wi 7] 2R B 2w R 201,442 1,938,909
Amounts due from subsidiaries 7T BRI 2 ] 30 171,844,623 177,671,684
Investments in securities UEF 4% %% 653,239,404 692,395,437
Cash and cash equivalents W KR EHEHH 326,309,761 294,250,365 Simon CHAN Sai-ming Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han
i 4 B3 KSR
Total current assets it B V7 R 1,205,000,020 1,221,281,133 Director Director
HF E&a
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pt
Trade payables NEAST KR 72,459,276 45,531,974
Other payables and accruals A, A 5 9 252,788,838 235,783,289
Rental and other deposits FH 4 R HoAh 4% 4 103,973,471 94,287,294
Amount due to the immediate holding company ISERRE R 2 Y NCIE ) 254,303,568 254,303,568
Lease liabilities LiEk7giti 1,279,666 2,254,797
Total current liabilities i Bh AR 684,804,819 632,160,922
NET CURRENT ASSETS RN B %E 520,195,201 589,120,211
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B BEUR R AR 3,753,667,403 3,551,042,096
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. &AATMEIRITEK (&)

(continued)
Note: Bt -

Movements of the Company's reserves are as follows: AN T2 AT

At 1 April 2021 T202144 7 1H 5,377,494,224 (2,541,609,418) 2,835,884,806

Loss and total comprehensive A P A T R

loss for the year - (211,874,565) (211,874,565)

Transfer from development maintenance R R YEIBIE 4 4k & Al o

fund to capital reserve 8,545,780 - 8,545,780
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 F2022434 31 H J 2022441 H 5,386,040,004 (2,753,483,983) 2,632,556,021
Loss and total comprehensive AP R AT A

loss for the year - (242,095,027) (242,095,027)
Transfer from development maintenance R SR YEIB I 4 B4R & At 1

fund to capital reserve 7,403,488 - 7,403,488
At 31 March 2023 T202343H31H 5,393,443,492 (2,995,579,010) 2,397,864,482

33. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 33. ALK S M F R *K

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for LR S5 IR# T 20234512 A 12 H K& F /% I
issue by the Board of Directors on 12 December 2023. PWArR .
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